# 安小雅 雅思口语素材

第二套 Part2 (简单版串联) 适合学生党使用

#### 关于素材使用方法和答疑

客服的微信提供素材售后服务,有疑问都可以在微信上询问哦!在微信通讯录搜:安小雅。即可找到客服~

店主开通的福利微信公众号: 安小雅

公众号会在每场考试后发布考试答案回忆,还有最新考试资讯,雅思技巧等等福利哦!

#### 口语题库适用范围

口语题库全球一致,各个国家地区都一样。适用于笔试,机考,UKVI和 IELTS Online。

### 雅思考官一对一

我们跟多位 10 年以上经验的资深雅思考官合作,提供口语/写作一对一私教服务,教学内容可自定义。 行业金字塔尖师资水平,有意请联系微信客服。

#### 串联版 Part2 目录以及使用说明

串联版 Part2 指的是一篇范文回答多个话题。具体分类看看以下目录就知道了。

但是有些话题问的方向不一样,如果用同一篇范文来回答的话会有跑题嫌疑。所以有些串联的话题我们还是写了 2-3 篇范文,根据问题的问法稍作了一些修改。但是大体上的内容和思路都是一致的<sup>~</sup>

翻译里标黄的部分是与其他文章相同的句子,共用的。

### 如果我觉得素材有错怎么办?

我们的素材都是经过店主和外教一起编写和检查过的哦! 您可以放心!

其实外国人在生活中有一些常用的口头上的表达,看起来很奇怪但实际并没有错的,国内老师也不会懂这些。所以呀! 如果你觉得素材有错,我们是非常欢迎您来询问我们滴!千万不要觉得不好意思哦!下面举两个例子:

"Anna is two years my elder." 安娜比我大两岁。"She is four months my younger" 她比我小四个月。

这是一种比较现代的说法,当然我们平时都会讲"Anna is two years older than me"和"She is four months younger than me."但其实外国人都会用前者多一些的。

"the majority of the girls were content discussing about how handsome or how affluent their boyfriends were." 女孩子们都在热烈地讨论他们的男朋友有多帅。

这是现代英语的另一个特征,就是外国人在口头上都常常会省略掉介词。这里就把 were content with discussing

的 with 去掉了。这在口语上是完全没问题的,但大家在写作中就尽量要避免哦。

### 目前的 26 个话题是 9-12 月的保留题

另外的 9-12 月新题会在 9 月 2 日开始每日更新,预计 9 月 8-10 日左右更新完

题目。该套答案预计9月20日左右更新完毕。

### 目录

(一) Gucci 围巾	
01-02: 昂贵的礼物 & 喜欢穿的衣服	4
(二) 尾波冲浪	6
03-04: 想尝试的水上运动 & 想尝试的冒险	6
05: 爱看的体育运动	7
(三)宿管阿姨	
06-07: 乐于助人的人 & 受欢迎的人	8
(四)捉迷藏	9
08-09: 玩过的游戏 & 印象深刻的儿时经历	9
(五)过年回老家堵车	
10-11: 印象深刻的汽车旅行 & 得到错误信息的时刻	
12: 做重要决定的时刻	11
(六)大唐不夜城	
13-14: 人山人海之地 & 迷路	
(七)春节包饺子	14
15-16: 和小孩相处的时刻 & 喜欢的传统庆祝活动	
(十二)有趣的邻居	
17-18: 有趣的邻居 & 最近搬家的人	16
(单独话题)	
19: 公开发言	
20: 理想之家	
<b>21:</b> 新开的商店	20
22: 想去的遥远之地	

23:	多次阅读的书籍	22
24:	有用的发明	23
25:	令你失望的电影	24
26:	感兴趣的工作	25

# (一) Gucci 围巾

# 01-02: 昂贵的礼物 & 喜欢穿的衣服

Describe an expensive gift you would like to give to	Describe a piece of clothing that you enjoy wearing
someone.	most.
You should say:	You should say:
What gift you would like to buy	What it looks like
Who you would like to give it to	How often you wear it
How long it would take to save the money	When and where you got it
And explain why you would like to give this	and explain why you enjoy wearing this piece of
expensive gift to this person.	clothing so much.

### 《昂贵的礼物》 023-4-002555

I have had my eye on an elegant Gucci scarf, a grey wool scarf with the iconic Gucci logo on it. It looks very classy. I've been thinking of giving it to my best friend Angela as a gift. Considering its price, it would probably take me several months to save up for it.

Copyright by An xiao ya. I've known Angela for six years. She's been my best friend ever since high school and she has always been my cornerstone and biggest supporter. We took care of and encouraged each other and had a wonderful high-school life together. Now she's about to graduate, I think a luxury scarf will bring her more confidence as she begins her career.

Angela has always had a strong fashion sense. She is particularly fond of the designs of Gucci. I can almost picture how happy she would be when she receives the well-packaged scarf. I want her to feel special and loved with this expensive gift. Although it will take a certain time and energy for me to save up for this luxury gift, I feel it is worth it when I think of the expressions that she will make when she receives the gift. She deserves the best.

Plus, it is not just about price. The feelings behind the price are more important. This represents our relationship and my love for her. Every time she wears that Gucci scarf, she will think of me and remember how much I care for her.

中文思路:

我看上了一条漂亮的古驰围巾,<mark>那是一条灰色的羊毛围巾,上面印着 GUCCI 标志性的 logo,看起来非</mark>

<mark>常高级。</mark>我想把它送给我最好的朋友 Angela。考虑到它的价格,我可能要花好几个月的时间来攒钱。

我认识 Angela 已经有 6 年时间了,从高中起她就是我最好的朋友。她一直是我的基石和最大的支持者。 我们相互关怀和鼓励,度过了非常美好的高中生活。</mark>现在她快要毕业了,相信一条奢侈品围巾会在工作 中给她带来更多自信。

Angela 一直很有时尚感,她很喜欢 Gucci 的设计。我已经可以想象当她打开包装精美的围巾时会有多开 心。送她这么贵的礼物,因为我想让她觉得自己很特别,很受宠爱。淘宝店铺:安小雅。虽然我可能需 要一些时间和精力来攒钱买这份豪华的礼物,但想到她收到礼物时脸上露出喜悦的表情,一切都是值得 的。她值得拥有最好的东西,

另外,这不仅仅是价格的问题。更重要它背后的情感意义。这象征着我们的关系以及我对她的爱。每当 她把那条古驰围巾系在脖子上时,她就会想起我,知道我有多在乎她。

#### 《喜欢穿的衣服》

I have a Gucci scarf, which is one of my favorite accessories. It's a grey wool scarf with the iconic Gucci logo on it. It looks very classy and I would wear it for several days every week during the spring and autumn. It is very versatile and goes well with clothes of all kinds.

I didn't buy it myself - my best friend Angela gave it to me as my birthday present. This expensive gift surprised me a lot. I've known Angela for six years. She's been my best friend ever since high school and she has always been my cornerstone and biggest supporter. We took care of and encouraged each other and had a wonderful high-school life together.

I love this scarf dearly, not only because it is an expensive luxury item, but also because of its beautiful design. It is soft and has a wonderful texture. More importantly, it looks very elegant with a solid color coat.

Plus, it is not just about price. The feelings behind the price are far more important. These represent our relationship and my love for her. Every time I wear that Gucci scarf, I think of her and remember how much she care for me.

我的衣柜里有一条 GUCCI 围巾,这是我最喜欢的配饰之一。<mark>那是一条灰色的羊毛围巾,上面印着 GUCCI 标志性的 logo,看起来非常高级。</mark>每到春秋季节,我几乎每周都会有几天带着它。它的款式非常百搭, 各种风格的衣服都和它很相配。

这条围巾并不是我自己购买的,而是我的好朋友 Angela 送给我的生日礼物。事实上这份昂贵的礼物给 了我很大的惊喜。我认识 Angela 已经有 6 年时间了,从高中起她就是我最好的朋友。她一直是我的基 石和最大的支持者。我们相互关怀和鼓励,度过了非常美好的高中生活。

<mark>我喜欢这条围巾,不仅因为它是一件奢侈品,同时我也很喜欢 Gucci 的设计。</mark>它的质地非常柔软,拥有 非常好的手感。更重要的是它搭配一件纯色的大衣真的看起来很高级。

另外,这不仅仅是价格的问题。更重要它背后的情感意义。这象征着我们的关系以及她对我的爱。每当 我把那条古驰围巾系在脖子上时,我就会想起 angela,知道她有多在乎我。

# (二) 尾波冲浪

# 03-04: 想尝试的水上运动 & 想尝试的冒险

Describe a water sport you would like to try in the	Describe an exciting adventure you would like to go
future.	on.
You should say:	You should say:
What it is	Who you would go with
Where you would try it	Where you would go
Is it easy or difficult to do	What you would do on the adventure
And explain why you would like to try this water	And explain why you would like to go on this
sport.	adventure.

Surfing is the water sport I am keen to try in the future, and it's very popular among young people. I first came across surfing through TV shows where they invited celebrities to try it. It looked really exciting and interesting!

To be honest, surfing is not an easy task. You need to wait in the ocean for a wave to roll in. And when it finally comes, you need to stand up on your board very fast and ride the wave. It's a real challenge, testing your balance and bravery.

I would love try it in Sanya with some of my best friends. I've heard the scenery there is beautiful, with clear waters and professional instructors to teach us! I don't like to do sports alone, so trying out and learning a new sport with friends is far more fun and something to look forward to!

I have seen loads of exciting surfing videos on social media. Those surfers are just too smooth, catching waves and pulling off wonderful tricks like it's second nature. I love taking on new challenges, and surfing seems like such an exciting and interesting adventure. I can't wait to try it and become one of those riding the waves like a pro!

中文思路:

<mark>冲浪是我非常想尝试的水上运动</mark>(冒险,Adventure),它在年轻人中非常受欢迎。<mark>我是从电视上上了解</mark> 到这项运动的(回答冒险时把这句删掉),很多综艺节目都会邀请明星来体验这项运动,我觉得它看起 来非常酷。

事实上,冲浪学习起来有些困难。我需要在海里等待海浪的到来。<mark>当海浪来临的一瞬间,我需要立刻站</mark> 起来,双脚踩在冲浪板上顺着海浪滑行。</mark>这对我来说是一项非常有挑战性的运动,因为冲浪特别考验冲 浪者的平衡性和技巧。

我希望我能约上几个好朋友一起去三亚玩冲浪。因为我听说那里的风景特别美,海水特别干净,而且那 里还有专业的教练!我从来都不喜欢独自运动,我认为跟朋友一起尝试和学习一项新运动是非常有趣和 令人期待的!

我经常在社交媒体中看到冲浪视频。冲浪者们实在是太酷了,<mark>他们能顺着海浪快速滑行,做出各种高难</mark> 度动作。</mark>我是一个喜欢挑战新事物的人。<mark>冲浪对我来说非常新奇有趣,我很想尝试一下。</mark>我希望我以后 能学会冲浪,跟他们一样在海面上驰骋。

# 05: 爱看的体育运动

Describe a sport that you enjoy watching. You should say: What it is Who you usually watch this sport with Where and when you first watched this sport And explain why you enjoy watching this sport.

I enjoy watching videos about surfing. A few years ago, when I was on vacation in Sanya, I saw some people surfing at the beach. It was my first time watching this sport, and I developed a strong interest in it. In my spare time, I'm always scrolling through Douyin, checking out the fascinating surfing videos it recommends. My friends don't really understand the appeal, so I'm the only one watching!

Surfing isn't a particularly popular sport in China As far as I know, only a few people actually do it or even watch it. When a wave comes, surfers need to stand up on their board quickly and ride the wave. Some of those surfers are just incredible, catching massive waves and showing off their skills. Watching those surfers is so exciting! It feels like viewing computer-generated effects in movies. I'm afraid that at any moment, the surfers will be lost in the waves, but in reality, they are able to ride the waves, one after one.

I love taking on new challenges, and surfing seems like such an exciting and interesting adventure. I can get totally absorbed watching those surfing videos for an hour. I really wish I could learn to surf and ride those waves like a pro.

中文思路:

<mark>冲浪是我非常喜欢看的一项体育运动。</mark>几年前去三亚旅游的时候,我看到一些冲浪爱好者在海边玩。那 是我第一次看到这项运动,当时我就对它产生了浓厚的兴趣。我平时空闲的时候,很喜欢看抖音 app。 抖音经常会给我推荐冲浪相关的视频。我的同学都对这项运动不感兴趣,所以我都是自己看的。

冲浪在中国是一项非常小众的体育运动,我相信只有很少人观看或者进行这项运动。冲浪者需要在海浪 来临的瞬间快速站起来,双脚踩在冲浪板上顺着海浪滑行。因此它具有非常高的观赏性。当海浪特别大 的时候,高超的冲浪者能在海浪中快速滑行,做出各种高难度动作!这看起来非常刺激,就像电影中的 电脑特效一样。我很怕下一秒冲浪者就会被海浪吞没,但事实上他们都能用自己的技巧冲破一道又一道 的大浪。

<mark>我是一个喜欢挑战新事物的人。冲浪对我来说非常新奇有趣,</mark>有时候我沉迷看冲浪的视频,一看就是一 个小时。我希望我以后能学会冲浪,跟他们一样在海面上驰骋。

# (三) 宿管阿姨

# 06-07:乐于助人的人 & 受欢迎的人

Describe someone who lives in your area who often	Describe a popular person you know.
help other people.	You should say:
You should say:	How you knew this person
Who this person is	Where and when you usually see this person
How this person helps others	What type of person he/she is
How important the help is	and explain why you think this person is very
And explain why you think this person often help	popular.
other people.	

Our dorm supervisor, Ms. Huang, is a very helpful person, and all of my classmates really like her.

Taobao: Anxiaoya. Ms. Huang is probably in her forties. She's not very tall and has a plump figure, but she looks very approachable. She's always there at the entrance of our dorm, and I see her every time I come and go. She's really friendly and always greets me with a genuine smile whenever I say hi.

Ms. Huang is always looking out for the students in our dorm. She set up a lost and found board in the foyer so that if anyone finds something, she'll take it and try to find the rightful owner. I once lost my ID card and, miraculously, I found it at Ms. Huang's lost and found. I'm so grateful to her for that. Plus, she's really great at fixing stuff. Whenever our lamps or chairs break, she'll help us out and repair them for free in her spare time.

Although Ms. Huang's actions were small, they made a big difference in helping us out. If it weren't for her finding my ID card, I wouldn't have been able to take the high-speed train home. She's so kind-hearted and generous with her time, and I'm really happy to have met her. I'm sure my classmates feel the same way.

我们宿舍楼的宿管黄阿姨是一个乐于助人的人,我身边的同学都很喜欢她。

黄阿姨大概 40 多岁的样子。个子不高,身材胖胖的,看着很和蔼可亲。她基本上整天都会坐在我们宿舍出入口那里,我每天出入宿舍楼都会看见她。她是个很热情的人,每次我跟她打招呼她都带着真诚的 微笑回应我。淘宝店铺:安小雅。

黄阿姨经常帮助宿舍楼的同学们。她立了一块失物招领黑板在宿舍的出入口。但凡有同学捡到别人遗失的物品,她都会无偿地保管并寻找失主。我就曾经遗失了我的身份证,最后神奇地在黄阿姨那里找到了。 对此我非常感谢她。此外她还是一个非常善于修理东西的人。有时候我们的灯或者椅子坏了,她在空闲的时候都会帮我们免费修理。

虽然她做的都是一些小事,但实际上帮我们解决了很大的麻烦。假如那次她没有帮我找回身份证,我甚 至无法做高铁回家。黄阿姨是一个天生热心肠的人,同时她有足够的空闲时间去做这些事并且乐在其中。 我很高性能认识黄阿姨,估计我身边的同学们大多也这么想。

# (四) 捉迷藏

# 08-09: 玩过的游戏 & 印象深刻的儿时经历

Describe a game you enjoyed playing when you were	Describe a happy experience you remember very well
younger.	from your childhood.
You should say:	You should say:
What it was	How old you were at that time
Where you played it	Who you were with
Who you played this game with	What happened at the time
And explain why you enjoyed playing this game.	And explain why you remember this happy
	experience.

Hide and seek was a game I loved to play when I was a child. It's a simple game that only requires at least 2 people to play. The rules are also straightforward. One person acts as the seeker, while the others hide. If the seeker finds someone, they lose.

I remember when I first started primary school, I used to play hide and seek all the time with the kids who lived nearby. We'd always go to the community park to play because it had lots of places to hide such as a slide, bushes, and trees. We'd flip a coin to decide who'd be the seeker, and usually the seeker would find the hiders pretty quickly because the park wasn't that big. I was a fast runner from a young age, so I almost never got caught!

I loved this game because I could easily win - it was so much fun! Whenever I was the seeker, I'd simply pretend to close my eyes to see where everyone was hiding. Even though it was kind of cheating, it made the experience even more memorable. Now that I'm all grown up, I don't have as much time to play games like I used to, so I really miss this childhood experience - especially whenever I pass by the park.

中文思路:

捉迷藏是我小时候非常喜欢玩的一个游戏。这个游戏很简单,最少只需要2个人就可以玩了。游戏规则 也很简单。一个人充当找寻者,其他人要提前躲起来,被找寻者抓住了就算输。

我记得自己刚上小学的时候,经常和住在附近的小孩一起玩捉迷藏。我们会在社区旁边的公园玩。这个 公园里面有滑梯,草丛,还有很多便于躲藏的地方,非常适合玩捉迷藏。我们会丢硬币决定谁当找寻者。 大多时候寻找者都能很快的找到猎物,因为公园不太大。我从小就跑得快,所以我很少会被抓住!

我很喜欢这个游戏,因为我很容易在游戏中取胜。每当抽到我的当寻找者的时候,我都会假装闭上眼睛, 把大家躲藏的地方看得一清二楚!虽然这很耍赖,但是却让我对这段经历更加印象深刻。现在长大了需 要做的事情变多了,感觉再也没办法跟小时候一样无忧无虑地玩游戏了。所以我非常怀念这段小时候的 经历,尤其是我再路过这个公园的时候。

# (五) 过年回老家堵车

# 10-11: 印象深刻的汽车旅行 & 得到错误信息的时刻

Describe a car journey you made that you remember	Describe an occasion when you got some incorrect
well.	information
You should say:	You should say:
When it was	When it was
Who was with you	Where you got the information
How long the journey took	How you found out that the information was not
and explain why you remember this car journey so	correct
well.	And explain what happened when you found out that
	the information was not correct.

Copyright by An xiao ya. Last year, our whole family decided to take a road trip back home for Spring Festival. It had been three long years since the pandemic hit, so we were absolutely delighted to go on this trip. We packed our bags in advance, but as soon as we set out, we came across an enormous traffic jam!

At that time, I quickly opened the 'Amap' app to check if there was a faster route. It showed us that there was a serious accident ahead and suggested taking a different route using the national highway. It said that this alternate route could save us over an hour, so without hesitation, we changed our course and followed the app's instructions.

Unfortunately, after driving for quite a while, I realized that the app had led us astray. The new route we were following had a road under construction, which meant there was no way for cars to go through. We had no choice but to turn around and go back to the original route, wasting over two hours of our journey!

That false information from the navigation app was very annoying, and it really got under my skin. To make matters worse, I even encountered some cars that had gone the same wrong way as us. Originally a 4-hour journey, it took us nearly 7 hours to reach our destination. This experience left a deep impression on me. It taught me a lesson that when checking routes, it's always wise to use multiple navigation apps and double-check the information before making any decisions!

中文思路:

<mark>去年春节,我们全家人一起开车回老家。</mark>因为疫情的影响,我们已经三年没回乡下了。<mark>我们提前收拾好</mark> 了行李,兴高采烈的出发了。结果我们刚上高速,就遇上了意想不到的大堵车。

这时候我打开高德地图 app 查询是否有更快捷的路线。令我高兴的是,它显示前面发生了严重的交通事 故,如果下高速改走国道。这样能节省一个多小时的时间。</mark>无需考虑,我们果断根据导航指示改道出发。 但当我们行驶了很长一段时间后,我发现高德地图给我们指了一条错路。新路线途中有一段路正在施工, 无法通车。最后我们只能调头回去原先的路线,白白的浪费了2个多小时的时间。

这个错误的信息<mark>耗费了我们大量的时间,让我非常生气。</mark>我甚至还遇到了和我们一样因为导航而走错路 的车辆。<mark>本来 4 小时的路程,最终我们花费了将近 7 小时才到达老家。这次的经历让我印象非常深刻。</mark> 这对我来说是一个教训,就是查询路线时最好要用多个软件,反复确认过再下决定!

# 12: 做重要决定的时刻

Describe a time when you had to make an important decision. You should say: What decision you had to make How you made the decision Why this decision was important And explain whether you think it was a right decision.

Last year, our whole family decided to take a road trip back home for Spring Festival. It had been three long years since the pandemic hit, so we were absolutely delighted to go on this trip. We packed our bags in advance, but as soon as we set out, we came across an enormous traffic jam!

At that time, I quickly opened the 'Amap' app to check if there was a faster route. It showed us that there was a serious accident ahead and suggested taking a different route using the national highway. It said that this alternate route could save us over an hour. At that moment, deciding which road to take became very important as it would directly determine whether we could make it home in time for dinner. After thinking for a while, I made a decision and decided to give the new route a shot.

Unfortunately, after driving for quite a while, I realized that the app had led us astray. The new route we were following had a road under construction, which meant there was no way for cars to go through. We had no choice but to turn around and go back to the original route, wasting over two hours of our journey!

It was such a terrible decision which had wasted a large mount of time and made us annoying. Originally a 4hour journey, it took us nearly 7 hours to reach our destination. This experience left a deep impression on me. It taught me a lesson that when checking routes, it's always wise to use multiple navigation apps and double-check the information before making any decisions!

中文思路:

去年春节,我们全家人一起开车回老家。我们提前收拾好了行李,兴高采烈的出发了。结果我们刚上高 速,就遇上了意想不到的大堵车。

这时候我打开高德地图 app 查询是否有更快捷的路线。令我高兴的是,它显示全面发生了严重的交通事 故,如果下高速改走国道。这样能节省一个多小时的时间。这时候走哪条路显得至关重要,它直接决定 着我们能否按照计划回家吃晚饭。我思考了一会儿,决定尝试一下新路线。我们根据导航指示改道出发。 但当我们行驶了很长一段时间后,我发现高德地图给我们指了一条错路。新路线途中有一段路正在施工, 无法通车。最后我们只能调头回去原先的路线,白白的浪费了2个多小时的时间。

这个决定无疑是错误至极的,<mark>它耗费了我们大量的时间,让我非常生气。本来 4 小时的路程,最终我们</mark> 花费了将近 7 小时才到达老家。这次的经历让我印象非常深刻。这对我来说是一个教训,就是查询路线 时最好要用多个软件,反复确认过再下决定!

# (六) 大唐不夜城

### 13-14: 人山人海之地 & 迷路

Describe a time when you went to a place where there	Describe a time when you lost your way.
were a lot of people.	You should say:
You should say:	When it was
Who you went to this place with	Where you went
What was happening in this place	How you got lost
Why there were so many people there	And explain what happened after you lost your way.
And explain how you felt about being in a place with	
so many people.	

#### 《人山人海之地》

My good friend Angela and I travelled to Xi'an during the May Day holiday this year. It's something I have been looking forward to for a very long time, as it has become one of the most attractive holiday destinations in China.

We decided to spend the first day in Xi'an at the Great Tang All Day Mall, a large-scale pedestrian street modeled after the Tang Dynasty, which is a star attraction in the city. During the May Day holiday, the Mall would launch special themed activities, including various free street performances in the evening. Taobao: Anxiaoya.

Common sense suggested to me that the night view at the Mall had to be prettier than in the day. What's more, I knew there were going to be performances, so I decided to head there after dinner. Unexpectedly, it was so packed with people from the nearby subway station that I could hardly move. I could only weave between the crowds slowly and what made me even more disappointed was that due to the large number of tourists, the Mall canceled all the performances that night due to safety concerns.

I admit that the Great Tang All Day Mall is one of the most beautiful places I have ever been to, but the sea of people everywhere had an adverse effect on my travelling experience, which made it depressing. Worse still, I did not have a data signal most of the time, and I didn't manage to take any satisfactory photos on my cellphone as the background scenes were so cluttered.

中文思路:

今年五一假期,我和我的好朋友 Angela 一起去了西安旅行。西安是当下中国最火的旅行目的地之一, 这趟旅行我已经期待了很长一段时间。

到达西安的第一天,我们决定传说中的大唐不夜城。大唐不夜城是模仿唐代修建的一个大型的步行街, 也是西安最热门的景点。恰逢五一假期,大唐不夜城推出特别的主题活动,到了晚上步行街上会有各种 各样免费的街头表演。

或许所有的游客都有和我一样想法,我觉得晚上的大唐不夜城景色会更美,还有可以观看演出。因此我 选择了晚饭后前往。<mark>但我没想到的是,晚上的人实在是太多了。刚出地铁站马路就被挤的水泄不通。我</mark> 甚至无法选择方向,只能跟着人流慢慢往前移动。更令我感到失望的是,由于游客太多,景区出于安全 考虑,取消了当晚所有的演出。

我不得不承认,大唐不夜城是我去过最美的地方之一。但是人多实在是影响旅游体验,我感到非常的压

抑。当时我的手机都没有信号了,我甚至没有拍到一张满意的照片,因为照片的背景实在是太杂乱了。

#### 《迷路》

My good friend Angela and I travelled to Xi'an during the May Day holiday this year. It's something I have been looking forward to for a very long time, as it has become one of the most attractive holiday destinations in China.

We decided to spend the first day in Xi'an at the Great Tang All Day Mall, a large-scale pedestrian street modeled after the Tang Dynasty, which is a star attraction in the city. During the May Day holiday, the Mall would launch special themed activities, including various free street performances in the evening.

Unexpectedly, it was so packed with people from the nearby subway station that I could hardly move. I could only weave between the crowds slowly. While sightseeing, it suddenly occurred to me that Angela was missing and that we had been separated by the constant flow of people. I was completely new here and it soon dawned on me that I was lost. I took out my phone to check the navigation software, but there was no signal due to the crowd!

At that moment, I panicked. With great effort, I gradually convinced myself to calm down and move to a relatively open area. Fortunately, my phone had a signal after I restarted it. Though the signal was weak, I could still use the GPS to see my location. When I occasionally get lost, navigation software works wonders!

中文思路:

今年五一假期,我和我的好朋友 Angela 一起去了西安旅行。西安是当下中国最火的旅行目的地之一, 这趟旅行我已经期待了很长一段时间。

到达西安的第一天,我们决定传说中的大唐不夜城。大唐不夜城是模仿唐代修建的一个大型的步行街, 也是西安最热门的景点。恰逢五一假期,大唐不夜城推出特别的主题活动,到了晚上步行街上会有各种 各样免费的街头表演。

但我没想到的是,晚上的人实在是太多了。刚出地铁站马路就被挤的水泄不通。我甚至无法选择方向, 只能跟着人流慢慢往前移动。走着走着,我发现 Angela 不见了,我们被人流冲散了。这对我来说是一个 完全陌生的地方,我迷失了方向。我拿出手机想看看导航软件,但这里竟然由于人多没有手机信号!

那一瞬间我慌了神,冷静下来之后,我努力的从人流中走出来,走到了一个相对空旷的地方。然后把我 的手机关机后重新开机。令我庆幸的是,重新开机后我的手机有信号了。虽然网络不太稳定,但我可以 看到自己的位置了。当我迷路的时候,导航软件实在是太好用了。

# (七) 春节包饺子

# 15-16: 和小孩相处的时刻 & 喜欢的传统庆祝活动

Describe a time when you spent some time with a	Describe a traditional celebration you enjoy in your
child.	country.
You should say:	You should say:
Who the child was	What it is
Why you spent time with this child	Who you celebrate with
When it was	What you do in this celebration
And explain how you felt about spending time with	And explain why you enjoy this traditional
this child.	celebration.

#### 《和小孩相处的时刻》

A few years ago, during the Spring Festival, my sister and I spent an entire afternoon making dumplings. Making dumplings is a traditional custom in China. During many important festivals, people will honour the date by celebrating in this manner.

On the eve of the Lunar New Year, my family gathered to make dumplings. We divided the tasks amongst the family. My mum prepared the dumpling wrappers, my dad was responsible for cutting vegetables, and I was the one who finally formed the dumplings. My sister is much younger than me, being only 6 years old at the time. She thought it was so much fun to make dumplings, so she asked me to teach her. But let me tell you, it was quite a challenge for a little kid. I tried teaching her for a long time, but she just couldn't get the hang of it. The dumplings she made were all different shapes, and they would burst when we boiled them. I didn't know what to do, so when she went to watch TV, I secretly fixed the dumplings for her. Finally, after all my hard work, my sister got to enjoy the dumplings she made with her own hands. She was so happy and excited, gushing to me about how she had just figured out how to make dumplings!

To be honest, I really love spending time with my sister, even though there's a big age gap between us. This activity brings our family closer together. It is wonderful and delightful to eat dumplings which we have made with our own hands. Normally, we are very busy, and there are seldom opportunities for everyone to get together. Perhaps what I cherish the most are not the dumplings, but rather the rare reunion.

中文思路:

好几年前的一个春节,我和我妹妹花了一个下午的时间来包饺子。<mark>包饺子是中国很多地方的传统习俗。</mark> <mark>饺子承载着我们对于来年的美好期望。</mark>

年三十的时候我们全家人一起在家里包饺子。妈妈负责做饺子皮,爸爸负责切菜,我就负责包饺子。我 妹妹年纪比我小很多,当时她才6岁。她觉得包饺子很好玩,就让我教她。然而这对于一个小孩来说显 然有些困难,我教了她很久,她都学不会。她包出来的饺子形状各异,而且一煮就会炸开。我拿她没办 法,只能趁她去看电视的时候,帮她重新加工一下饺子。最后,在我的努力下,妹妹如愿的吃上了自己 亲手包的饺子。她非常开心的跟我说她已经学会包饺子了!

事实上我很喜欢和我的妹妹在一起,虽然我们的年龄差距很大。<mark>包饺子让我们一家人拉近了彼此之间的</mark> <mark>距离。对我妹妹来说,吃到自己亲手包的饺子是一件非常有成就感的事。平时大家都很忙,所有人能聚</mark> 在一起是非常难得的。或许我珍惜的并不是饺子,而是这一份难得的团圆。

#### 《喜欢的传统庆祝活动》

Making dumplings is a traditional custom in China. During many important festivals, people will honour the date by celebrating in this manner. Dumplings are an essential dish, found on every dinner table in northern China during the New Year's festival. Making and eating dumplings together, primarily in northern China, has become a fundamental activity for the majority of families during the Spring Festival.

On the eve of the Lunar New Year, my family will gather to make dumplings. The tasks are divided between the family. My mum will prepare the dumpling wrappers, my dad is responsible for cutting vegetables, and my grandpa and I will just have a seat and form the dumplings while watching TV.

In China, we believe that dumplings contain our good fortunes for the coming year. My mum will always choose one dumpling to hide a coin inside of. It is thought that whoever eats the dumpling that contains the coin is the luckiest person and shall be extremely fortunate in the following year.

I adore this activity with all my heart. It brings our family closer to each other. It is wonderful and delightful to eat dumplings which we have made with our own hands. Normally, we are very busy, and there are seldom opportunities for everyone to get together. Perhaps what I cherish the most are not the dumplings, but rather the rare reunion.

中文思路:

包饺子是中国很多地方的传统习俗,在很多重要的节日,人们都会用这种方式来庆祝。饺子是北方人年 夜饭桌上必不可少的一道菜。主要是在中国北方,包饺子、吃饺子,已经成为大多数家庭过年的一个重 要活动。

<mark>在大年三十的时候,我们全家人都会聚在一起包饺子。我的妈妈负责做饺子皮,爸爸负责切菜,</mark>我和爷 爷奶奶会坐在电视机前。一边看电视一边包饺子。

<mark>饺子承载着我们对于来年的美好期望。</mark>我的妈妈总喜欢在所有饺子中选出一只,给里面放一枚硬币。谁 吃到有硬币的饺子,就代表他是最幸运的人,接下来会有好运气。

我非常喜欢这项活动,<mark>他让我们一家人拉近了彼此之间的距离。吃到自己亲手包的饺子是一件非常有成</mark> 就感的。平时大家都很忙,所有人能聚在一起是非常难得的。或许我珍惜的并不是饺子,而是这一份难 <mark>得的团圆。</mark>

# (十二) 有趣的邻居

# 17-18: 有趣的邻居 & 最近搬家的人

Describe an interesting neighbor.	Describe someone you know who has recently moved
You should say:	into his/her own accommodation
What do he/she do	You should say:
How you met this neighbor	Who this person is
How often you see this neighbor	Why this person moved into this accommodation
And explain why you think this neighbor is	What kind of accommodation this person moved to
interesting.	And explain whether you think this move was a
	positive change for this person.

#### 《有趣的邻居》

I think my neighbor Angela is a very interesting person. We live in the same residential quarter, and first met while walking our dogs; mine a poodle and hers a Pomeranian. I'd say she's a retiree in her mid-60s or so. I always walk my dog after 10 pm, and often meet her in the elevator, so we both got to know each other.

Angela is very kind and funny. She is very caring and treats her pet as if it was her baby. One time, while chatting with her, she told me about how she used to live in a house in the city center that didn't have an elevator. The area around her house was bustling with traffic. Because of this, every time she took her dog for a walk, she had to be super cautious. But after retiring, she moved to our neighborhood. Here, we have all these huge grassy areas that are perfect for dog walking, and elevators in every building, which makes it easy for her and her dog to go up and down.

But here's the funny part. Whenever she takes her dog downstairs for a walk, she actually talks to her dog as if the dog understands her. It's like she's having a conversation with her dog. For example, when her little furry friend steps in some mud on the road, she patiently says, "Sweetie, that's a dirty spot, let's go this way instead." Every time I see her talking to her dog, it cracks me up. It's just too amusing!

中文思路:

我认为我的邻居 Angela 是个非常有趣的人。我和 Angela 住在同一个小区,我们是遛狗的时候认识的。 她是一位退休老人,看起来很年长,我猜可能有 60 多岁了。当我在家的时候,我每周都会在电梯里遇 见她好几次,渐渐的我们两个就熟悉了起来。我们家养了一只贵宾犬,而她养了一只博美。

Angela 是个善良又有趣的人。她非常有爱心,对自己的宠物就像孩子一样。<mark>有一次我跟她聊天的时候,她告诉我她以前住在市中心没有电梯的房子。家附近是车水马龙的道路。她每次遛狗都得小心翼翼担惊受怕的。退休后她就搬到了我们的小区来,因为我们小区有大片适合遛狗的草地,而且房子都有电梯, 亏便她和她的狗上下楼。而最令我感到有趣的是,她下楼遛狗的时候总是跟狗说话,仿佛她的狗能听懂 一样。比如,当她的小狗在路上踩到泥浆时,她会耐心的跟她的狗说"宝贝那里很脏的,走这边"。每次 我看见她跟她的小狗说话时,我都觉得有趣极了。</mark>

#### 《最近搬家的人》

Angela is a very interesting person. She moved into my community last year. We first met while walking our dogs; mine a poodle and hers a Pomeranian. I'd say she's a retiree in her mid-60s or so. I always walk my dog after 10 pm, and often meet her in the elevator, so we both got to know each other.

Our neighborhood is located by the river, a small stretch away from the city center. Sure, we don't have all the bells and whistles of the city, but the natural beauty here is incredible. It's a really great place to call home. One time, while chatting with Angela, she told me about how she used to live in a house in the city center that didn't have an elevator. The area around her house was bustling with traffic. Because of this, every time she took her dog for a walk, she had to be super cautious. But after retiring, she moved to our neighborhood. Here, we have all these huge grassy areas that are perfect for dog walking, and elevators in every building, which makes it easy for her and her dog to go up and down.

I truly believe that moving to our neighborhood was a significant change for Angela. She has mentioned several times how much she adores this new community. Having an apartment with an elevator is a game-changer for a retired person like her, making it so much easier for her to get around. Plus, she's such a loving person, treating her pet like her own kid. And get this, our community is totally pet-friendly!

中文思路:

我的邻居 Angela 是去年才搬过来的,她是个非常有趣的人。我们是遛狗的时候认识的。她是一位退休 老人,看起来很年长,我猜可能有 60 多岁了。当我在家的时候,我每周都会在电梯里遇见她好几次, 渐渐的我们两个就熟悉了起来。我们家养了一只贵宾犬,而她养了一只博美。

我们小区位于离市中心有一段距离的江边,虽然这里没有丰富的商业设施,但是自然环境非常好。我觉 得很宜居。<mark>有一次我跟她聊天的时候,她告诉我她以前住在市中心没有电梯的房子。家附近是车水马龙</mark> 的道路。她每次遛狗都得小心翼翼担惊受怕的。退休后她就搬到了我们的小区来,因为我们小区有大片 适合遛狗的草地,而且房子都有电梯,方便她和她的狗上下楼。

我认为搬家对 angela 来说绝对是一项积极的改变。她不止一次跟我说过她非常喜欢这个新社区。对于一个退休老人来说,有电梯的房子会极大的方便她的出行。另外,她非常有爱心,对自己的宠物就像孩子一样。我们的社区对狗狗来说是非常友好的。

# (单独话题)

# 19: 公开发言

Describe a time when you had to give a talk to lots of people. You should say: Who you gave this talk to What the talk was about Why you gave this talk And explain how you felt about giving the talk to lots of people.

Despite being kind of an introvert, I often feel uncomfortable when I speak in front of a lot of people. The last time I gave a talk to lots of people was when I had to give a self-introduction in front of my classmates. It was a very interesting experience that I remember very well.

It happened on the first day of my college career. We were all gathered in the classroom in the afternoon. Our teacher had given us an overview of the school and then had asked each of us to go up to the front of the class and introduce ourselves. I believe he wanted to help us get to know each other as quickly as possible.

I am very shy, and when I heard about this task, I felt very nervous. At the beginning, as I looked at all those eyes in the audience focused on me, my mind went completely blank. I told everyone my name, where I was from, as well as a few of my hobbies. But it wasn't until I said that I loved going shopping and playing mahjong that the whole class laughed out loud.

Yeah, I guess my hobbies were a bit different from the others, who were all talking about books and sports. Their laughter put me at ease, and I felt much more relaxed when I continued speaking. Some of my classmates even came up to me after class and asked for my contact info. We ended up creating a chat group, and it's been really cool since - we've even hung out a few times to play mahjong!

#### 中文思路:

<mark>我是个内向的人,</mark>生活中我几乎不愿意在很多人面前讲话。最近一次应该是我在全班同学<mark>面前做自我介</mark> 绍的经历,说起来它非常有趣,而且给我留下了深刻的印象。

那是我大学开学的第一天。那天下午,我们全班同学被召集到课室,老师给我们介绍完学校的基本情况 之后,他要求我们每个人轮流上台进行一分钟的自我介绍,试图让大家都尽快熟悉起来。

我是个比较腼腆的人,听到这个任务我非常紧张。刚开始的时候,看着台下那么多双眼睛一起看着我, 我的大脑一片空白。我结巴着跟大家说了我的名字,我的家乡,还有我的兴趣爱好。直到我告诉大家我 喜欢逛街和打麻将时,全班同学都笑了。因为其他人讲的都很正式,都说自己喜欢看书或者运动。似乎 只有我的爱好与众不同。但也是因为如此,大家的笑声缓解了我的紧张,后面我继续说的时候感觉轻松 多了。下课后还有几个同学都主动加我微信,我们还因此组建了一个聊天群。在以后的课余生活中,我 们约着去打了好几次麻将!

### 20: 理想之家

Describe your idea of a perfect house. You should say: Where it would be What it would be like How special it would be And explain why it would be perfect for you.

When most people consider their perfect houses, a common answer would be a villa or a duplex apartment. In contrast, I would have to say that my ideal home would be an apartment with a large balcony. I believe it is very comfortable to have a big balcony in one's own home.

If I had the chance, I'd want to live in an open area with panoramic views, such as overlooking a river or a lake. I am someone who cares deeply about the environment, and it brings me a lot of joy when I can step out onto a balcony and immerse myself in the beautiful scenery.

I would plant a plethora of plants there, including both common small potted plants but also some larger tropical varieties. I could even install a hammock suspended from the roof of the balcony, as it is extremely pleasant lying in a hammock, enjoying an afternoon tea when the weather is warm and sunny.

If I had a house with a big balcony, it would be a place for me to relax and an excellent space for partying with my friends. I wouldn't need to worry about the mosquitoes on the grass or lampblack when barbecuing outdoors. That's what my perfect house would be. It sounds absolutely perfect.

说到心目中完美的房子,大多数人应该会喜欢大平层或者别墅,而<mark>我最喜欢的却是有大露台的房子。我</mark> 认为没有什么比一个宽敞的大阳台更让我感觉舒服的地方了。

如果可以的话,我希望这间房子能在一个风景优美且视野开阔的地方,比如说江边或者湖边。我是个非 常在乎居住环境的人,如果走出阳台就能看到美景,这会让我心情愉快。我想要一个很大的露台,<mark>这样</mark> 我就可以在阳台上种很多植物。不仅有常见的小盆栽,我还希望有一些大型的热带植物。我甚至想要在 阳台的屋顶上装一个秋千。在天气好的时候,没有什么比坐在秋千上享受一顿下午茶更惬意的事情了。

如果我拥有了一间带大露台的房子,<mark>阳台除了是我放松休息的地方,更是我和朋友聚会的好选择。在阳</mark> <mark>台烧烤既不用考虑烤肉的油烟,还不用担心草地上的蚊虫。</mark>这实在是太完美了。

# 21: 新开的商店

Describe a new shop that has opened in your city. You should say: Where it is What it sells Who goes shopping there And explain how successful you think this new shop will be.

Recently, I heard about a new cookery school that had opened in a mall I often visit. I was very curious about this place because I love all kinds of tasty food.

This business is called ABC Cooking. They don't sell any ready-made food but instead sell courses where customers can get hands-on experience making their own favorite desserts or dishes. During the process, a professional teacher guides customers on how to cook the dishes. The teacher teaches them about the techniques required to cook flawless rice and fry an egg to perfection. The teacher also introduces some professional tips and tricks, such as how to choose appropriate cuts of meat and how to control the heat when pan-frying steak.

From what I've seen, the customers are mainly young women. It is very likely that they are working nearby, but even college students seem to be big fans of this cookery school. Honestly, it is apparent that it is going to be very successful because its concept is extremely innovative.

Nowadays, many young folks are getting tired of the usual pastimes, like going out for meals or watching a movie. My friends and I totally agree that this cooking concept is very interesting. If I can find the time in the future, I will definitely sign up for one of their courses. It offers a chance to learn life skills while also providing a relaxing and enjoyable social experience.

中文思路:

最近,就在我经常去的商场里,新开了一家厨艺体验馆。我对这家新开的商店非常感兴趣,因为<mark>我是个</mark> <mark>非常喜欢美食的人,一切好吃的东西都是我的最爱。</mark>

这家店铺叫做 ABC cooking。它不直接售卖任何食品。顾客可以通过参与这家店铺的课程,亲手制作出 自己喜欢的甜品或者料理。<mark>制作过程中,有一位专业的老师全程指导。她将指导顾客如何蒸米饭,如何</mark> <u>煎鸡蛋。老师还会介绍一些专业知识,比如怎么选择合适的肉类,煎肉的时候如何控制火力。</u>

据我观察,在这里消费的主要是一些年轻人,并且以女性为主。她们看起来像是在附近上班的白领,当 然大学生们也非常喜欢这家商店。这已经可以预料到这家店将会很成功。因为它的形式非常新颖。现在 大多数的年轻人已经厌倦了吃饭或看电影这样传统的休闲方式。我和朋友都觉得这家店铺很酷,如果以 后有时间,我还会参加类似的课程。这样即可以学习到生活技能,也是一种放松和良好的社交手段。

### 22: 想去的遥远之地

Describe a place which is far away that you would like to visit in the future. You should say: Where it is How you would travel there What you would do there And explain why you would really like to visit this place.

Lhasa is a very well renowned city and I have always wanted to take a short trip to Lhasa. Located on the Tibetan Plateau, Lhasa is one of the highest cities in the world. Lhasa owns the world-famous Potala Palace, and it is also the holy land of Buddhist believers.

Taking the train is definitely the most popular way to get to Tibet. It's not only affordable, but you get to take in the stunning views as you go. The only problem is that tickets can be hard to come by since it's such a popular route.

Taobao: Anxiaoya. I wish to go to Lhasa with my family. Most scenic spots in Lhasa need to be reached by car, and my dad is an experienced driver. If I have the chance, I definitely will go to Namtso. This is one of the three holy lakes in Tibet. Aside from the clear lake, visitors can see the snow-capped mountains in the distance. I want to go to the famous Potala Palace, which is the landmark of Lhasa.

Lhasa is a magical and interesting city, where the air is thin, but the people are full of faith. I once saw a video on social media that really touched me. It showed Tibetan people in simple clothes, braving the wind and rain, setting off from their homes. Every few steps, they would kneel down and bow their heads in reverence. Their destination was the holy Jokhang Temple. Seeing their powerful faith and devotion made me want to go to Lhasa and experience it for myself.

中文翻译:

拉萨是一座非常著名的城市,更是很多中国人心中此生必去的旅游目的地之一。我一直想去拉萨进行一 场短途旅行。拉萨位于青藏高原,是世界上海拔最高的城市之一。这里不仅有全世界闻名的布达拉宫, 更是许多佛教信徒心中的圣地。<mark>淘</mark>宝店铺:安小雅。

最受欢迎的进藏方式毫无疑问是乘坐火车,火车不仅价格便宜,还可以欣赏沿途美丽的风景。只是我不 确定是否能买到车票,因为这条线路实在是太受欢迎了。

我希望和我的家人一起去拉萨。拉萨的大多数景点都需要自驾才能到达,而我的爸爸是一名有经验的司 机。如果我去拉萨旅游,那我一定不会错过纳木错。这里是西藏的三大圣湖之一。除了清澈的湖水,远 处还可以看到雪山。我想去著名的布达拉宫,这是拉萨标志性的建筑。

拉萨是一个神奇又有趣的城市,这里的空气稀薄,但是这里的人却充满了信仰。我曾经在社交网站看过 一个视频。一些衣着补素的藏民不惧风雨,不怕路途遥远,从自己的家出发,每走几步就会跪下磕头, 直到到达他们心中的圣地大昭寺。那种虔诚的信仰之力让我的心灵受到巨大的震撼。因此我非常想去拉 萨看看。

# 23: 多次阅读的书籍

Describe a book you have read more than once. You should say: Why you read this book What this book was about Whether you learnt anything from it And explain why you have read this book more than once.

I am a big fan of reading and love all kinds of novels. Every time I read a fascinating novel, it feels like I'm following the protagonist on an adventure. Recently, I bought a set of the Adventures of Sherlock Holmes, which was introduced to me by my friends. In fact, I have already read it more than once! The book contains many separate and exciting stories. These stories are full of intrigue and suspense which is why I found the book to be so hard to put down.

The Sherlock Holmes novels are actually a large collection of stories written by Sir Arthur Conan Doyle. Holmes and Watson are famous detectives who protect England from evil. Most importantly, they protect people from the criminal mastermind, Professor Moriarty. This book not only improves my critical thinking skills, but also imparts lots of medical and scientific knowledges.

I've read Sherlock Holmes more than once, and although I already know who the killer is, the battle of wits between Sherlock and Moriarty is very exciting because they're both geniuses. Every time I read, I find new clues that I hadn't noticed before, which is very interesting to me.

I have bought many different detective novels since I was young, but the best of them all is the Sherlock Holmes series. This is because the criminal is never the person who you think it is going to be. Therefore, the conclusion is always a surprise.

中文翻译:

我喜欢读书,尤其喜欢看各类小说。每当我遇到精彩的小说,那种感觉就像我在跟着主角一起冒险。最 近我买了一套《福尔摩斯合集》,这本书是我的好朋友推荐给我的。我已经读了不止一次了。这本书里 有许多有趣的独立的故事。这些故事充满了神秘和悬念,简直让人爱不释手。

福尔摩斯系列小说是阿瑟•柯南道尔爵士创作的一套大型小说。福尔摩斯和华生是著名的侦探,他们保 护英国免遭罪恶。最重要的是,它们保护人们免受超级恶棍 Moriarti 博士的伤害。这本书不仅增强了我 的思维逻辑,还可以学习到许多化学知识和医学知识。

福尔摩斯我已经读了不止一遍了,虽然我已经知道凶手是谁,但夏洛克和莫里亚蒂之间的智慧之战非常 有趣,因为他们都是天才。每次阅读我都会发现新的之前没有注意到的线索,这让我觉得非常有意思。

我看过很多侦探小说。福尔摩斯是其中最有趣的,因<mark>为罪犯从来都不是你想象中的那个人,总有出人意</mark> <mark>料的结局出现。</mark>

# 24: 有用的发明

Describe an invention which is very useful in your daily life. You should say: What it is What you use it for Is it easy to use And explain why it is very useful in your daily life.

I recently suggested to my roommates that we get a washing machine for ourselves and split the cost between us. It is so useful that I consider it to be one of the most important inventions in the world.

Without a washing machine, I would have no choice but to handwash my clothes. The timetable of classes I have to attend daily always exhaust me by the end of the day, so handwashing, especially during summer, is simply too time-consuming.

Throw the clothes in, pour in a bit of detergent and conditioner, and there you have it - a fresh load of laundry in an hour, which, by the way, I can spend however I choose. Take, for instance, practicing spoken English or reading. Just imagine the improvement I can accumulate from those saved hours. What a useful tool a washing machine is!

I believe everyone needs a washing machine, regardless of age. Washing machines are not so much a convenience for young people, who are too lazy to do their household chores, as they are reliable inventions of the modern era for the elderly, whose energy levels are simply incomparable to their younger counterparts. In fact, my friends, family members, and I all consider the washing machine as a necessity in life.

Washing machines are common items nowadays, it is undeniably a breakthrough invention and the symbol of simplicity and efficiency.

最近,在我的提议下,我和我的舍友集资买了一台洗衣机。不得不说,这台洗衣机简直改变了我的生活, 它实在是太有用了。洗衣机真是一项伟大的发明!

在没有洗衣机之前,我只能用手洗衣服。每天下课我已经很累了,回到宿舍还要洗衣服,尤其是炎热的 夏天,脏衣服很多。这让我感到费时费力。自从有了洗衣机,我只需要要把衣服放进去,加上洗衣液和 消毒液,一小时后我就能得到一筐干净的衣服。我可以用这个时间去做任何我想做的事。如果我每天都 用这一小时来开口说英语,或者读一些书,那我将会得到很大的个人提升。

我认为所有人都需要洗衣机,无论是年轻人还是长着。年轻人通常很懒,他们不愿意做家务。上了年纪的人,他们的体力和精力都在下降,更需要使用一些现代化的工具。我和我的朋友,家人都认为洗衣机 是生活中的必需品。

虽然洗衣机现在已经是很普及的家用电器,但不可否认,它是一项伟大的发明。它让人们以一种更简单, 更高效的方式生活。

# 25: 令你失望的电影

Describe a film you saw recently that you found disappointing. You should say: What kind of film it was What it was about Why you decided to watch this film And explain why you found this film disappointing.

Recently, I watched a comedy film called "Detective Chinatown 2". It tells the story of Tang Ren, who tricks his friend Qin Feng into a journey to New York, where they join a global detective competition that promises a huge cash prize. As they try to find out the identity of a murderer, they discover a bigger secret behind the game.

I decided to watch this film because I liked the Detective Chinatown series very much. The second installment used the same director and actors as the first one, so I was very interested in how this new story compared. I was looking forward to a detective story full of wit, humor, and clever plot twists.

Unfortunately, this second installment is a boring and repetitive film, making it pretty awkward to watch, at times. The storyline is also totally lacking in originality. By the time the killer appeared, I had already guessed that he must have been the culprit. Even the final twist didn't bring me much surprise. It seemed like the director was more focused on creating visually stunning scenes rather than creating a solid, engaging storyline.

Overall, "Detective Chinatown 2" didn't meet my expectations. It wasn't as fascinating as the first film was and feels more like a generic, unoriginal comedy. It is unfortunate when a potentially good movie fails to meet expectations, but at the same time, I realize that not every movie can achieve great success, and sequels often leave people disappointed.

中文思路:

最近,我看了一部悬疑喜剧《唐人街探案 2》,电影讲述了主角唐仁为巨额奖金,欺骗好朋友秦风到纽约参加世界侦探大赛的故事。他们在寻找杀人凶手的过程中,却发现了隐藏在这次挑战背后的更大秘密。

我决定看这部电影,因为唐人街探案系列是我非常喜欢的作品。第二部从导演到演员都和第一部相同, 因此我对故事的前提很感兴趣。我期待着一个充满诙谐幽默和巧妙情节转折的侦探故事。

然而,我发现这部电影令我失望。整部电影的笑点让人觉得非常尴尬,他们是强迫的和重复的。故事的 推理同样缺乏新意,凶手一出来,我就猜到他是凶手了。包括最后的反转,也没有带给我多少惊喜。导 演似乎更专注于创造视觉上令人惊叹的场景,而不是发展一个坚实的故事情节。

总的来说,《唐人街探案 2》没有达到我的期望。它并不像第一部那样讲述了了一个引人入胜的故事,它 只适合一家人一起当做普通喜剧来看。一部有潜力的电影拍得不尽如人意是很不幸的,同时,不是每部 电影都能大获成功,续集往往会令人感到失望。

# 26: 感兴趣的工作

Describe a job you think would be interesting to do. You should say: What it is What skills are necessary to do the job When you first knew this job And explain why you think this job would be interesting to do.

I have dreamed of being a teacher ever since I was a child. When I was young, I thought my teacher was very authoritative and could educate and discipline the whole class, which was super cool. Now as I get older, I still love the idea of being a teacher.

In fact, it's not easy to be a teacher. Most schools only recruit graduates who have majored in education. Not to mention, that's just the basic requirement. In addition, you must have a teaching certificate. To get this certificate, students need to take part in the unified examination held by the government. If you want to work at a better or renowned school, you have to pass a city-wide teacher recruitment exam, which has a very low passing rate. If I want to be a teacher, first of all I have to study hard and pass these two exams.

The main reason why I want to do this job is that teachers have summer and winter vacations, which aren't available in other social jobs. I am a big fan of travelling so I need a lot of vacation to meet my desires. However, in China, working hours are very long and working overtime is frequent. The longest paid leave is only seven days during the Spring Festival. Secondly, I think teaching is a respectable profession with high social status. In my work, I may come into contact with students and parents of various personalities, which I look forward to. Moreover, teaching is also a well-paid profession which is very attractive for me.

中文思路:

从小我就梦想成为一名老师。小时候我觉得我的老师非常有威严,而且能管教整个班级的学生,这酷毙 了。现在我长大了,依然很喜欢这份工作。

想成为一名老师是很不容易的,大多数学校都要求师范类专业,这只是基础的要求。除此之外,你还必须取得教师从业资格证。考试每年只有一次,通过了就会取得相应证书。如果你想去一所好学校上班, 还得通过全市统一的教师招聘考试,这个考试的通过率是非常低的。如果我想成为一名老师,首先我得 努力学习,通过上述的两项考试才行。

我想做这份工作,很大的原因是因为它有寒暑假,这是一般工作无法达到的。我是个很重视假期的人, 我很期待在长假中拥有一场长途旅行。但是在中国,大多数的工作都需要加班,甚至春节只有一周的假 期,过于忙碌的工作会让我觉得压力很大。其次,我认为老师是一个令人尊敬的职业,拥有很高的社会 地位。在工作中我可能会接触到各种性格的学生和家长,这些都令我感到期待。